
      
PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:

City-Council-Live-StreamCity-Council-Live-Stream

CORTEZ CITY COUNCILCORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
WORKSESSION/SPECIAL MEETINGWORKSESSION/SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY, MAY 24, 2022TUESDAY, MAY 24, 2022
6:00 p.m.6:00 p.m.  

 
      
CALL TO ORDER
 

A. 6:00 p.m., Web Site Design Update- Presented by Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton Wright
and Director of Community and Economic Development Rachael Marchbanks.

  

 

B. 6:15 p.m., Food Truck/Mobile Vendor Review- Presented by Director of Community and Economic
Development Rachael Marchbanks and Contract Planner Nancy Dosdall.

 

C. 6:45 p.m., Discussion of a set of Council protocols for possible future adoption-Presented by City
Manager Drew Sanders.

 

D. 7:00 p.m., Discussion on possible changes in venue (room) and/or set up options for future City
Council workshop sessions.

 

E. 7:10 p.m., Discussion on Request to Change Times of Opening/Closing of Marijuana Establishments-
Presented by City Clerk Linda Smith.

 

F. 7:15 p.m., General Council Discussion   

 

G. For Your Information   

 

a. Minutes from Board of Commissioners, Montezuma County, Colorado for May 3, 2022.
 

b. Minutes from Board of Commissioners, Montezuma County, Colorado for May 10, 2022
 

ADJOURNMENT of Worksession at 7:20 p.m.ADJOURNMENT of Worksession at 7:20 p.m.
 

http://www.cityofcortez.com/497 /City-Council-Live-Stream


CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
05/24/2022 Agenda Item: B.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Rachel Marchbanks, Director of Community/Economic Development

SUBJECT:
 

6:15 p.m., Food Truck/Mobile Vendor Review- Presented by Director of Community and
Economic Development Rachael Marchbanks and Contract Planner Nancy Dosdall.
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Food Truck/Mobile Vendor Review













































































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
05/24/2022 Agenda Item: C.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Drew Sanders, City Manager

SUBJECT:
 

6:45 p.m., Discussion of a set of Council protocols for possible future adoption-Presented by City
Manager Drew Sanders.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
The City Manager has prepared a Cortez specific set of Council protocols to be used by individual Council
members as a quasi-policy manual and reference document.  This particular document is modeled upon similar
instruments adopted by other Colorado municipalities. This is proposed as an effort to achieve the following:
Help the City Council adhere to open meetings laws; help maintain effective communication and organizational
efficiency; provide a convenient reference document for Council members to refer to.  The City Manager requests
that the Council discuss the material, offer input and/or suggestions, and consider whether to adopt a final version.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
DRAFT City Council Protocols



CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS 
Approved by City Council on:      Last Revision: 4-21-2022 

 

 
Communication: Agenda Items   

 

1. The agenda packet is shared with all Councilmembers via the AgendaQuick system no later than 

the Thursday afternoon before scheduled Council meetings. Councilmembers will direct their 

individual requests for additional materials or information relating to agenda items to the City 

Manager via e-mail, while copying the request to the Mayor prior to the Council Meeting. If the 

requested information can be provided from readily available data with no diversion of the staff 

time, then it will be provided within a reasonable amount of time after the request. Information 

will be sent at the same time to all Councilmembers to their official City email address.  

 

2. Councilmembers should strive to ask questions of staff for further information in a regular 

meeting. If this is not possible, in order to honor the time of City staff, Councilmembers will 

make every attempt to request additional materials or information relating to the Council meeting 

agenda as soon as possible before the scheduled meeting and will attempt to collect all questions 

in one request if a question cannot wait until the next regular meeting. The Council as a whole 

should direct the City Manager to provide this information at a future meeting; or, if more 

immediate information is needed, by email or hard copy to all Councilmembers.  

 

3. If the requested information is not readily available or requires a special report or a significant 

investment of time that will divert staff from established priorities, the Manager will notify the 

requestor and the Mayor prior to the start of the meeting. The requestor has the option of pulling 

the item from the agenda and/or making a motion to postpone the agenda item for further 

consideration.  

 

a. The City Manager will place the request for information or agenda item on the next 

meeting agenda if the majority of Councilmembers agree the requested information is 

important for future decision-making.  

 

b. If the Council agrees that the information is important for future decision-making, then 

the Manager will direct that a report be developed and provided as requested by the 

Council and commit to a time frame for providing the information.  

 

 

City of Cortez 

123 Roger Smith Ave. 

Cortez, Co.  81321 



Communication: Between Meetings 

 

1. The City Manager may update all Councilmembers on important City issues as necessary, 

between meetings, but shall always strive to follow open meeting laws. This may include one-

way communication via mail or email from the City Manager where information will be sent to 

all Councilmembers at the same time.  In times of emergency requiring immediate notification 

via phone, the Mayor will be the first contact, then Mayor pro-tem, and then the other members. 

 

2. A).  Any mail correspondence a Councilmember may have received at City Hall is promptly 

delivered to the Councilmember’s mailbox in City Hall, located in the City Clerk’s Office. 

 B).  The City Manager will communicate requested information to all Councilmembers in a 

 reasonable time without interfering with the regular conduct of City business. 

C).  The City Manager will distribute to all Councilmembers any information requested for the 

Council by the Mayor or a Councilmember at a regular meeting. 

 

3. Councilmembers may communicate with other individual Councilmembers, the Mayor or the 

City Manager for the purposes of asking clarifying questions, providing clarifying information or 

socializing under circumstances that do not conflict with or circumvent the Colorado open 

meetings law. Councilmembers shall refrain from conducting business requiring deliberation by 

the entire Council through email and/or between meetings. If three or more members of the 

Council are participating in a conversation about City business through email or in person, an 

open meeting is required. Councilmembers will communicate their individual requests for 

detailed or sensitive non-agenda information to the City Manager while copying the request to the 

Mayor. If the requested information can be provided from readily available data with no diversion 

of the staff time, then it will be provided within a reasonable amount of time after the request at a 

public meeting 

 

4. If a Councilmember has a question requiring the City attorney’s response, he/she should refer the 

question to the City Manager and courtesy copy the Mayor. This is done as a cost-saving measure 

and to ensure that several Councilmembers are not contacting the attorney with duplicate 

questions or that one Councilmember is not directing the City Attorney.  

 

5. Councilmembers will not directly contact entities with which the City contracts with or otherwise 

engages, such as, but not limited to, City Engineers, potential or current vendors, and other 

service providers for purposes of City business.  

 



Communication: Visiting City Operations 

 

1. Although Councilmembers are encouraged to visit any City facility or operation for informational 

purposes however, as a courtesy, Councilmembers will inform the City Manager of any visit as 

much in advance as possible to accommodate for staff’s time, unless the Councilmember is 

attending a function to which he/she has been invited. Obvious exceptions to this are private 

visits to City parks, recreation center, library, City Hall, etc.  The City Manager will set up tours 

of City operations as Councilmembers request them. Councilmembers must follow proper safety 

guidelines. All visits are to be escorted or directed by a staff member designated by the City 

Manager. Councilmembers will not assume a supervisory role with staff or their contractors.  

 

Communication: With the Public 

 

1. Councilmembers are encouraged to participate in community activities as liaisons between the 

public and the City with respect to its legislative role (not with respect to quasi-judicial matters, 

i.e. licensing or land use decisions pertaining to a particular property or entity). Councilmembers 

are expected to:  

a. Listen politely and respectfully.  

b. Accurately relay non-confidential information about the City in a positive and truthful 

manner.  

c. Refer questions about specific City activities/issues to the City Manager or appropriate 

staff person or spokesperson (as designated by the City Manager or Mayor) when they do 

not know the answers.  

d. Clarify Councilmember’s limitations, obligations, and responsibilities as a member of the 

Council. Do not speak on behalf of the entire Council.  

e. Respect Council decisions.  

 

2. If the citizen has a complaint, ask if they have followed the City’s procedures and/or chain of 

command.  

(A) Complaints regarding staff should be directed to the City Manager.  

(B) Complaints regarding the City Manager should be directed to the Mayor. 

(C) Complaints regarding City services or issues should be directed to the City Manager, who 

may request that the complainant prepare a written statement or complaint. This written request 

will be kept on file and, per City protocol, will be responded to in writing by the City Manager 

within three days as time allows. The City Manager will inform the Council of the resolution of 

any serious issue referred to the City Manager.  Multiple complaints or those of a severe or 

unusual nature with regard to City services or issues will be brought before the Council by the 

City Manager.  

(D) Complaints regarding Councilors should be directed to the Mayor, who will address the 

complaint/issue with the Councilmember. 

 

3. The Council should recognize the right of citizens to express themselves regarding policy, 

finances, or other responsibilities of the Council that are not quasi-judicial in nature should use 

one or more of these alternatives: contact City Staff, e-mail, telephone, or write Councilmembers, 

speak at public forums, or participate in the public comment period of a Council Meeting.  



 

4. A Councilmember retains the right to speak to anyone as an individual, except with regard to 

quasi-judicial matters to be heard by the Council, but must understand that any comment will 

likely be interpreted by the listener as being an official statement of the Council. In speaking as 

an individual, the Councilmember should: A)  clarify that he or she is speaking as an 

individual and not for the Council; and B) remind community representatives of any position or 

action that the Council has officially taken related to the issue in question and support the official 

position taken by the Council.  

 

Communication: With the Media 

 

1. The Mayor or designee will be the official spokesperson for the Council to the media on issues 

that relate to Council decisions. The City Manager or a designated staff member will be the 

official spokesperson for the City on issues of media attention that relate to City operations.  

 

2. Press releases issued on behalf of the Council will be approved by the Council prior to release, 

unless an emergency or public necessity exists. Press releases issued on behalf of the City will be 

approved by the City Manager prior to release, unless an emergency or public necessity exists.  

 

3. A Councilmember who receives a call from the media requesting information, comments, or an 

interview regarding City business will direct the caller to the City Manager. The City Manager 

will notify the Council, periodically, of any media requests. If the matter is urgent, the City 

Manager will notify each Councilmember via phone or e-mail, whichever is more practical. The 

City Manager or designee will keep Councilmembers apprised of issues the media may be 

considering.  

 

4. A Councilmember retains the right to speak to the media as an individual, but must understand 

that any comment will likely be interpreted by viewers/readers as an official statement of the 

Council. In speaking as an individual, the Councilmember should: 1) Clarify that he/she is 

speaking as an individual and not for the Council; 2) Remind the media representative(s) of the 

position or action of the Council related to the issue in question; and 3) Notify the City Manager 

and the Mayor about the media request. The Mayor or City Manager will inform the rest of the 

Council of the media correspondence. 

 



Communication: E-mail, Written, or Verbal 

 

1. Councilmembers may respond to e-mails from constituents, but should bear in mind that any such 

responses may be subject to Colorado Open Records Act (CORA) requests. A Councilmember 

retains the right to respond to e-mails as an individual, but must understand that such 

communication may be interpreted by the reader as being an official statement of the Council. 

The member should: 1) Clarify that he/she is responding as an individual and not for the Council; 

and 2) Remind the reader of any position or action the Council has officially taken on the subject.  

 

2. Members will share City business related e-mails they receive with the rest of the Council via the 

City Manager. The Councilmember should copy the City Manager for dissemination to the rest of 

the Council. This applies if: 

 

a. The e-mail is not of a personal or confidential nature.  

b. It is not obvious that the sender has copied the rest of the Councilmembers on the e-mail.  

c. The Council does not engage in any conversation or action which would violate the open 

meetings Act.  

 

3. E-mail or letters addressed to all Councilmembers are to be answered by the City Manager on 

behalf of the Council or are to be put in the Council Packet. A copy of such response will be 

forwarded to all Councilmembers and, depending on severity, reported at the next meeting.  

 

4. Councilmembers will not respond to anonymous e-mails as to City business unless the 

communication pertains to criminal, health, or safety issues. Any such e-mails will be forwarded 

to the City Manager for appropriate action. If a Councilmember receives communication which 

he/she perceives to be of a threatening nature or a criminal act, the Councilmember will 

immediately call the City Police Department and the City Manager and forward the e-mail to the 

City Manager for action and the rest of the Council for their situational awareness.  

 

Meetings: Types of Meetings 

 

There are a variety of meetings for Councilmembers. While most meetings occur on a regular 

basis, dates can change or meetings can be omitted altogether due to other conflicts on the calendar.  All 

public meetings will be posted with 24-hour notice.  

 

1. Council Meetings - These open meetings are held on the second and fourth Tuesdays the month 

at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall, unless a special meeting has been called. They are held to conduct the 

formal business of the City in public. Action may be taken during this meeting. Council Meetings 

may be preceded or followed by an executive/closed session.  

 

a. Members of the public are invited to address the Council during a Council meeting 

regarding agenda or non-agenda items during either of the two a public comment periods. 

Anyone wishing to address the Council must sign up at the start of the meeting in 

accordance with Resolution 11, Series 2022.  

 



b. Each speaker has up to three (3) minutes to address the Council. The Mayor will call the 

speakers forward to the podium to speak at the appropriate time.  

 

c. On occasion, the Mayor (with advice from the Council) may choose to modify the 

number of minutes assigned to each speaker.   

 

Councilmembers will not conduct an interchange with the speaker if the speaker 

addresses a non-agenda item. The City Manager or Mayor may provide factual 

information and/or reference to policy in order to facilitate resolution.  

 

d. The Council meeting is recorded and minutes shall be made available by the City Clerk 

upon formal adoption by the Council at the following meeting. Adopted minutes shall be 

available on the City web site.  

 

2. Executive Sessions -These meetings are not open to the public and typically include consultation 

with legal counsel or other matters as allowed by Colorado open meetings laws. Since they are 

executive/closed meetings, there cannot be any formal action taken or decision made during an 

executive session.  Executive session discussions will be kept confidential. Topics that can be 

discussed in executive/closed session include: 

 

a. Personnel matters involving a specific employee including the City Manager’s evaluation 

and/or contract, unless the specific employee requests that the matter be discussed in an 

open meeting. 

b. Attorney conferences to receive legal advice on a specific legal question. 

c. Discuss purchase, exchange, lease, sale, or value of real property or other property  

  transactions. 

d. Deliberation regarding negotiations to develop a strategy for negotiations or to instruct a 

negotiator. 

e. Other topics as provided by the Colorado open meetings law such as documents protected 

under CORA, security arrangements, investigations, or matters deemed confidential 

under state or federal law. 

 

3. Workshops - These open meetings are typically held prior to a stated Council meeting at 6:30 

p.m. at City Hall.  Start times may vary based upon the needs of the City.  The Workshop is a 

meeting between Councilmembers and staff to discuss items and to receive information. In 

addition, no action is taken. The Council is typically provided more of an update on particular 

issues and programs that may come to the Council at a later date during a Council meeting.  

 

a. Members of the public may not address the Council during a Workshop meeting 

unless invited to do so by the Council. Public input is scheduled at regular Council 

Meetings only.  

 

Any Councilmember may make a request for a specific topic to be addressed in a future 

workshop session by submitting to the Mayor and City Manager a formal request in writing, 

submitted prior to the work session at which the topic shall be addressed. The Council may 



address the issue if a majority wishes to. At the end of each work session, the Mayor will ask 

Councilmembers if they have a topic to be discussed at a future meeting.  Packets and agendas are 

sent out by Thursday of the previous week, just like the regular Council meetings. 

 

4. Public Input Sessions -On issues of broad community interest the Council may decide to 

conduct public input sessions such as public hearings, at regular meetings, workshops, and 

presentations. Examples of issues include tax rate setting, general information gathering or 

sharing sessions, and similar topics. This meeting may be held at City Hall or another location. 

Members of the public may address the Council on the posted topic at hand. Councilmembers 

will listen to the comments but will not conduct an interchange with the speaker. However, if the 

speaker provides incorrect information then the Council or staff may request correct information 

at the earliest convenience. No action may be taken.  

 

5. Special Meetings -A special meeting is a business meeting held on a date other than the regularly 

scheduled meeting under Article III, Sec. 4 of The Charter (Cortez City Code). Action may be 

taken. A minimum of 24- hour notice to the public of the meeting is required, and minutes must 

be kept and made available to the public.  

 

6. Emergency Meetings - An emergency meeting is essentially a special meeting for the purpose of 

addressing a situation which must be handled immediately involving preservation of public 

peace, health, or property. Actions should be ratified at a subsequent meeting for which full and 

timely notice has been provided. As much notice as possible, under the circumstances, will be 

given for an emergency meeting.  Ordinances may be passed as an emergency measure after first 

reading, and then only by two-thirds vote of the Councilmembers present (Article III, Sec. 9). 

 

7. Retreats -A retreat is a planning meeting between Councilmembers and staff which could 

include a training session for Councilmembers. As a best practice, retreats should be held within 

10 miles of City limits. Councilmembers may elect to participate via telephone or video 

conference if unable to attend.  No action may be taken.  

 

 

Meetings: Agenda Setting 

 

1. Agendas are drafted by the City Manager. The City Manager will place the request for 

information or agenda item on the next meeting agenda if a majority of Councilmembers agree 

that the suggested information is important for future decision-making and the agenda item is 

desired at the next meeting. If the City Manager or Mayor receives a written request from a 

member of the public to include an item on an upcoming agenda, the City Manager shall decide 

how to present the information to the Council. He/she may elect to put the item on the next 

agenda, in consultation with the Mayor.   A standing agenda item for reports from the advisory 

committees will be placed on each agenda.  A representative from each advisory committee may 

give a brief report if so desired. 

 



2. No item should be placed on a Council Meeting agenda less than 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting unless an emergency or urgent public necessity exists. The Colorado open meetings law 

requires the City to post the agenda in a public location 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

 

 

3. The Council can pass items through a “consent agenda” and may do so in one motion.  During a 

Council Meeting, any Councilmember may remove an item from the consent agenda for separate 

consideration. Prior to the meeting, the Councilmember will make every effort to inform the 

appropriate staff member of his/her intent to remove the item from the consent agenda so that the 

staff member may be prepared. The Councilmember will also notify the City Manager and the 

Mayor of his/her need to further discuss the consent agenda item prior to action by the Council. 

Consent agenda items must still be voted upon by counting the ayes and nays of each 

Councilmember, but as a whole, and the votes required to pass any specific item on the consent 

agenda are not altered by placing the item on the consent agenda 

 

Meetings: Councilmember Preparation and Conduct  

 

1. Councilmembers will read and study the packet prior to each meeting. Councilmembers will 

direct agenda related questions to the City Manager, copying the Mayor, in accordance with the 

procedure outlined in “Communication: Agenda Items.” 

 

2. All Councilmembers are expected to conduct themselves professionally and ethically during all 

meetings and public forums, as well as away from public meetings.  Examples of behavior that 

will not be tolerated are rude remarks, interruptions, yelling, name calling and disrespectful 

verbal or body language, making slanderous, threatening, abusive, or disparaging comments.  

During posted meetings, all members will conduct himself/herself according to this protocol. As a 

best practice, Roberts Rules of Order shall apply and the principles outlined in CIRSA’s 

handbook for elected officials will be followed (Ethics, Liability & Best Practices Handbook for 

Elected Officials).   

 

If, during a meeting or public forum, any member conducts themselves in a manner that is 

intolerable or prevents the accomplishment of goals, the Mayor may adjourn or recess the 

meeting. Differences of opinion, if respectfully submitted, are not to be construed as unacceptable 

behavior but rather as alternate views on a subject. The Mayor may request a Councilmember 

who is unruly or disruptive to be escorted from the room. 

 

Individual Councilors may point out to the offending Councilor in private the infractions in an 

effort to resolve the concerns informally.  If the offenses continue, then the matter should be 

referred to the Mayor in private.  If the Mayor is the individual whose actions are being 

challenged, then the matter should be referred to the Mayor Pro-Tem.  

 

It is the responsibility of the Mayor to initiate action if a Councilor’s behavior may warrant 

sanction.  These actions can include, but are not limited to: discussing and counseling the 

individual on the violations; recommending sanction to the full Council to consider in a public 

meeting; or forming a Council ad hoc subcommittee to review the allegation and recommend 



sanction options.  If no action is taken by the Mayor, the alleged violation(s) can be brought up 

with the full Council in a public meeting. Councilors who intentionally and repeatedly do not 

follow proper conduct, as set forth in these protocols, the sources referenced in these protocols, or 

other applicable Colorado law, may be reprimanded or formally censured by the Council.   

 

3. Only Councilmembers who are physically present may participate in regular Council Meetings, 

with the only exception being emergency meetings.  Councilmembers who cannot attend, but 

would like to listen to a called meeting, may listen via phone, but cannot speak once the meeting 

begins. The minutes may reflect the following: “[COUNCILMEMBER] was unable to attend the 

meeting in person. Pursuant to the open meetings act, [COUNCILMEMBER] was not permitted 

to participate in the meeting, but, [COUNCILMEMBER] did call in and was able to listen to all 

the discussion on each of the agenda items discussed.”  

 

 

Meetings: Executive Sessions  

 

1. Executive session is a closed meeting and usually precedes or follows a Council Meeting or Work 

Session.  Refer to page 4 of this document for allowable topics.  

 

2. No formal action or decision may be made in executive session. The outcome of the discussion 

may be voted on by the Council once the executive session is adjourned and the regular meeting 

has recommenced. 

 

3. All matters discussed in executive session are considered confidential. Councilmembers will not 

disclose executive session conversations. When it is apparent to the Council that it would be in 

the best interest of the staff, community or Council to make a statement regarding anything that 

occurs in or results from an executive session, the Mayor will compose an official public 

statement that meets with the approval of a majority of the Council. Any such statement will 

comply with the limitations of the law. If individual Councilmembers are pressed for information 

regarding executive sessions that Councilmember will state clearly that he/she can give no 

information other than what is posted on the agenda. If pressed further, the Councilmember will 

refer the inquiry to the City Manager.  

 

4. Executive sessions must be audio recorded, and recordings must be kept a minimum of 90 days.  

As a general rule, the City Manager and/or the City Attorney will audio-record the proceedings 

and will note the time of the session start and close, as well as those in attendance. No formal 

minutes of the proceedings shall be taken.  

 

5. No persons other than the Council, City Manager, and City Attorney (as appropriate) is entitled to 

attend or participate in executive sessions. If the Mayor, designee or the City Manager believes 

that consultation with a person or group would be beneficial to the discussion, that person or 

group may be invited to participate for a specific purpose. Such consultants must leave the room 

upon the conclusion of their participation or when the Council no longer believes such 

participation is productive. A Councilmember will make such a request to the Mayor or designee, 



who will work with the City Manager to arrange for participation as requested. The City Manager 

may be prohibited from participating in executive/closed sessions where the Council may be 

considering any aspect of his/her employment or job performance. In the event any persons other 

than the Council and City Manager participate in executive sessions, the City Manager and 

Council will ensure that the participant(s) are aware of the limitations placed on disclosure of the 

content of the discussion occurring in executive session. The Council has the option to take action 

on a matter discussed in an executive session when the public or open session resumes. 

 

Committee and Council Liaisons (Advisory Committees) 

 

1. Councilmembers serve as community liaisons to various groups throughout the community as 

well as committees within the City. Through consultation and an appointment by the Council of 

individual Councilors, members may serve on the following committees as a standing liaison:  

 

• Public Arts  

• Historic Preservation 

• Parks, Recreation, and Forestry 

• Golf 

• Library 

• Mesa Verde Country (as board members) 

• Other Councils and committees, as determined by the Council 

 

2. The Mayor will solicit input from the Councilmembers regarding preferences and the Council of 

Councilors will assign members to liaison positions. Recommended liaison assignments will be 

approved by a majority of the Council. Liaisons can be removed from their assigned Council or 

Committee by a majority vote or as otherwise provided in the Cortez Municipal Code.  

 

3. The Council liaison will: 1) serve as the contact person for Councilmembers with questions in 

that particular area; 2) be willing to commit the time necessary to be effective; 3) be responsible 

for communicating to the Council on a periodic basis, subject to Colorado open meetings law 

limitations; and 4) be responsible for helping staff know how/when/what to communicate to the 

Council about the area; 5) a representative from each committee may give a brief report to the 

Council at stated meetings during the standing agenda item for advisory committee reports.  

 

4. The Council liaison will not: 1) give orders, make decisions for the Council or City, or otherwise 

imply that they are part of the City staff; 2) impede other Councilmembers from learning more 

about a subject from staff; 3) violate any Colorado open meetings laws; or 4) make decisions on 

behalf of the Council. 

 

 

Councilmember Conflict of Interest 

 

1. Elected officials are required to abstain from voting on any proposed or pending matter before the 

governing body when they have a personal or private interest in the matter.  When this situation 

arises, the official must disclose the interest to the governing body, not vote, and not attempt to 



influence the votes of other members of the governing body.  Generally, a personal or private 

interest is treated as a financial stake in the matter at hand.  This standard is applied to avoid the 

appearance of impropriety among government officials. 

 

2. Any Councilmember who may gain financially from any purchase or award of a contract shall 

recuse himself/herself from discussions and selection process pertaining to the matter. External 

obligations, financial interests, and activities of each employee and Councilmember of the City of 

Cortez must be conducted so there is no conflict or interference with the individual’s primary 

obligation and commitment to the City of Cortez. Councilmembers should not acquire or hold an 

interest, directly or indirectly, in any business or undertaking that may be economically benefited 

by action over which they have substantial authority.  Councilmembers shall comply with 

applicable state law, concerning conflict of interest and disclosure requirements, including 

without limitation C.R.S. 24-18-101 et seq., C.R.S. 31-4-404, C.R.S. 24-18-201, C.R.S. 18-4-301, 

C.R.S. 18-4-401, and C.R.S. 18-8-308.   

 

3. If a Councilmember has questions or concerns about a potential conflict of interest, he or she 

should consult the City Manager or Mayor (outside of a Council meeting) requesting that the City 

Manager or Mayor consult with the City Attorney. The opinion of the attorney will be conveyed 

to the councilmember by either the Mayor or the City Manager. 

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
05/24/2022 Agenda Item: D.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Drew Sanders, City Manager

SUBJECT:
 

7:00 p.m., Discussion on possible changes in venue (room) and/or set up options for future City
Council workshop sessions.
 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
05/24/2022 Agenda Item: E.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Linda Smith, City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

7:10 p.m., Discussion on Request to Change Times of Opening/Closing of Marijuana
Establishments- Presented by City Clerk Linda Smith.
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
A request has been made by two of our retail marijuana establishments to remain open later than the current time
of 9:00 p.m.  (Ordinance No. 1215, Series 2016).  The State of Colorado now allows marijuana establishments to
be open 8:00 a.m. to midnight.  The request is to extend the time to 10:00 or 11:00 p.m.  Council may discuss
the changes and, if they would like to extend the time, direct staff to complete an ordinance to address the
preferred time limit. 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Ord 1215









CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
05/24/2022 Agenda Item: G. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 
SUBJECT:
 

Minutes from Board of Commissioners, Montezuma County, Colorado for May 3, 2022.
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
BOCC 05032022



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 3, 2022     Page 1 
 

  

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MONTEZUMA COUNTY, COLORADO 

May 3, 2022 

 

 

                                                                                                                                

STATE OF COLORADO           ) 

                                                     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF MONTEZUMA   ) 

 

 

 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Montezuma County, Colorado, held on 

Tuesday May 3, 2022 at the Montezuma County Administration building in Cortez, Colorado, 

there were present: 

 

  

 

Jim Candelaria, Chairman  

Kent Lindsay, Vice Chairman  

Gerald Koppenhafer, Commissioner of Deeds  

Shalako Powers, County Administrator 

Ian MacLaren, County Attorney (Virtual) 

Kim Percell, County Clerk  

 

 

 

MINUTES: Commissioner Koppenhafer moved to approve the minutes for Tuesday, April 26, 

2022, as presented.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Lindsay and carried. 

 

PLANNING: Planning Director, Don Haley along with Assistant, S. Jane Duncan presented 

for signatures a Mylar for a Variance submitted by Ruben & Pauline Jasso, Lot #50 of the 

Summit Lake West Unit l Major Subdivision, at 14517 Road 35.9, Mancos, CO, consisting of 

1.21 acres, more or less, located south of Hwy 184, west of Road 35.9, situated in Section 33, 

T.37N, R.16W, N.M.P.M. 

 

Director, Haley along with Assistant, Duncan presented for signatures of a Mylar for a 2 Lot 

Moderate Subdivision & Rezoning, submitted by Douglas & Cindy Coulon, on property located 

at 21624 Road S, Cortez, CO, consisting of 17.42 acres, more or less, located west of Hwy 491, 

south of Road S, situated in Section 30, T.37N, R.16W, N.M.P.M.  

 

Director, Haley along with Assistant, Duncan presented for signatures of a Mylar for a 

Subdivision Amendment Application to the Four Corners Encampment Subdivision, submitted 

by Richard & Dixie Simmons and ASI Communications, Inc., on properties located at 24515 

Road 37, consisting of 1.02 acres, more or less and 24516 Hwy 145, Dolores, CO, consisting 



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 3, 2022     Page 2 
 

  

3.95 acres, more or less, both located east of Hwy 145, situated in Section 11, T.38N, R.14W, 

N.M.P.M. 

 

Director, Haley along with Assistant, Duncan presented for signatures of a Mylar for a 

Subdivision Amendment Application to the Mancos Hills Major Subdivision, submitted by Erik 

Nordstrom & Shanti Savage, on properties located at 41952 Road J.75, consisting of 3.39 

acres, more or less and TBD Road J.75, consisting 3.03 acres, more or less, Mancos, CO, both 

located north of Hwy 160, situated in Section 28, T.36N, R.13W, N.M.P.M. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: No Public comment.  

 

LODGERS TAX COMMITTEE: Committee Secretary, Brian Bartlett met with the 

Commissioners to give the recommendations for the 2022 Tax Fund Disbursements.  

Recommendations included: Dolores Chamber $45,000.00, Mancos Chamber $50,000.00, 

Cortez Cultural Center $34,000.00, Galloping Goose Historical and Museum $10,000.00, 

Mesa Verde Country $100,000.00, Ute Mountain Roundup Rodeo $2,500.00, 

Administrative Marketing for Grant Application Awareness $200.00, Southwest Colorado 

Canyon Alliance $5,000.00, Cortez Chamber $0.00, Mancos Common Press $0.00. Four 

Corners Geo Tourism $2.500.00, the Colorado Welcome Center $15,000.00, and 

Montezuma County Cares $0.00.  Totaling $264,200.00.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to 

approve the expenditures of the Lodgers Tax funds as presented.  Second by Commissioner 

Koppenhafer and carried.  (See attached)  

 

PROCLAMATION: Corey Robinson met with the Commissioners to present a “RIDE YOUR 

BIKE TO WORK DAY” proclamation for May 20, 2022.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to 

sign the proclamation for “Ride Your Bike to Work Day”.  Second by Commissioner 

Koppenhafer and carried,   (See attached)  

 

ROAD & BRIDGE DEPARTMENT: Road Superintendent, Rob Englehart met with the 

Commissioners to give a monthly report.  Superintendent Englehart presented the road and 

bridge schedule for the dates of May 1, 2022 through June 3, 2022 and gave an overview of the 

type of work scheduled.  Other topics discussed included; safety measures for County road 

crews, compliance for road closure signs, the Water Shortage Programs,  the yearly road blading 

projects, the purchased generator and a BLM parking area on Road 39. 

Administrator Powers presented for approval the State of Colorado Department of 

Transportation, #BRO C320-004 (22521) contract for the Alkali Bridge Project, in the 

amount of $1,825,000.00.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to DocuSign, the agreement for project 

#BR0 C320-004(22521), with the State of Colorado.  Second by Commissioner Koppenhafer and 

carried.  (See attached)   

 

FAIRGROUNDS: Fairgrounds Manager, Justin McGuire was not available to give a report.    

 

LANDFILL: Landfill Manager, Mel Jarmon gave his monthly report which included the 2022 

Landfill budget spread sheet.  Topics discussed with the report included: the annual CDPHE 

inspection, a deposit into the Post Closure Account, the delivery of the BOMAG machine, clay 

testing, overburden removal and wind closures.  (See attached)  



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 3, 2022     Page 3 
 

  

 

UNFINSHED BUSINESS:  

 

COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORT: County Attorney, Ian MacLaren discussed the 

development of an access release for the creation of a Social Services / Emergency Management 

data base and the Weber Canyon / Road 41 lawsuit.  

  

NATURAL RESOURCES, PLANNING & PUBLIC LANDS: Resource Director, James 

Dietrich, presented for approval, two letters of support addressed to Colorado Department of 

Transportation.  One letter of support, in reference to the SWTPR Funding Request Segment 

A Preliminary Engineering and ROW’s and the second letter of support, in reference to 

SWTPR Funding Request Segment C&D Mancos Side for local match, broad band conduit 

and concrete surface.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to sign the letter of support to the 

Colorado Department of Transportation Southwest TPR Funding Request Segment C&D 

Mancos Side for local match, broad band conduit and concrete surface.  Second by 

Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried.  Commissioner Koppenhafer moved to approve the 

request to the Southwest TPR Board for the Segment A Preliminary Engineering and ROW’s.  

Second by Commissioner Lindsay and carried.  (See attached)  

 

NOXIOUS WEED DEPARTMENT: Weed Department Manager, Bonnie Loving met with 

the Commissioners to give a monthly report.  Topics discussed included: Myrtle and Leafy 

Spurge, Blue Mustard,, Red-stem Filaree, Hoary cress - whitetop, Kochia, Russian Thistle, 

property visits, the backpack loaner program, cost share applications, treated areas on County 

property, roadside treatments, education, knapweed treatments, the Phreatophyte Project and 

future prescribed burns.  (See attached) 

 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: Administrator Shak Powers presented for 

approval the Public Health Department’s, Immunization Contract #19FHHA108935, 

Amendment Contract #2022*3197 Amendment #5.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to 

DocuSign the Contract Amendment #5 with the Colorado Department of Public Health. Second 

by Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried.   Other topics discussed included the Montezuma 

Roadmap Regional Team Meeting, a Homegrown Talent Initiative, Business Education 

connections, Potential Strategies and proposed CCI coordination to develop programs to allow a 

younger work age.  (See attached) 

  
COUNTY COMMISSIONER REPORT: Topics discussed within the Commissioners reports 

included: Commissioner Lindsay discussed the attended Cortez City Council meeting, Senate 

Bill 22-230, constituent discussions, the City of Cortez resurfacing projects and red flag wind 

warnings.  Commissioner Koppenhafer discussed the attended Cortez City Council meeting, 

the attended Mancos Town Board meeting, the attended Native Fish Monitoring & 

Recommendation Team meeting, the attended NRA banquet and the Zwicker (NRCS) Natural 

Resources Conservation Service request.  Commissioner Candelaria discussed the attended 

Cortez City Council meeting, the Southwest Colorado Regional Broadband Summit, a NACO 

Transportation meeting, a Health Needs Assessment interview, the Region 9 meeting, a Housing 

Authority meeting, CCI legislative discussions, Senate Bill 22-230, the attended Lewis Arriola 



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 3, 2022     Page 4 
 

  

School’s Hoedown event, the attended Dolores Chamber Banquet and the kickoff event for the 

Community Intervention Program.  

 

CORRESPONDENCE: The following correspondence was read and noted: email form Ingrid 

Ward. (See attached)   

 

MOTION TO ADJOURN: was made by Commissioner Lindsay, seconded by Commissioner 

Koppenhafer and carried. 

 

MEETING ADJOURNED: 10:50 a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________        ____________________________ 

Clerk                               May 3, 2022                        Chairman 

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
05/24/2022 Agenda Item: G. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Minutes from Board of Commissioners, Montezuma County, Colorado for May 10, 2022
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
BOCC Minutes 05102022



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 10, 2022     Page 1 
 

  

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MONTEZUMA COUNTY, COLORADO 

May 10, 2022 

 

 

                                                                                                                                

STATE OF COLORADO           ) 

                                                     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF MONTEZUMA   ) 

 

 

 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Montezuma County, Colorado, held on 

Tuesday May 10, 2022 at the Montezuma County Administration building in Cortez, Colorado, 

there were present: 

 

  

 

Jim Candelaria, Chairman  

Kent Lindsay, Vice Chairman  

Gerald Koppenhafer, Commissioner of Deeds  

Shalako Powers, County Administrator 

Ian MacLaren, County Attorney 

Kim Percell, County Clerk  

 

 

 

MINUTES: Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the minutes of the Proceedings of the 

Board of Commissioners Montezuma County, Colorado dated May 3, 2022, as presented.  

Motion was seconded by Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: It being the time set aside a public hearing is held for review and 

determination of a proposed Single Lot Development and AR3-9 Rezoning Application, 

submitted by Gary & Jaclyn Fisher, on property located at 24537 Road N, Cortez, CO, 

consisting of 81.65 acres, more or less, located north of Road N, west of Road 25, situated in 

Section 3, T.36N, R.16W, N.M.P.M.  The roll was called, the public notice read, and the 

proceedings were recorded for the record.  Mr. and Mrs. Fisher were present.  Planning 

Director, Don Haley with Assistant, S. Jane Duncan presented the details of the application 

and the findings of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Commissioner Candelaria opened the 

hearing to public comment.  Public Comment was made by Carol Taylor.  Hearing no further 

public comment that portion of the hearing was closed.  After hearing all the evidence presented 

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the proposed single lot development and AR3-9 

rezoning application, submitted by Gary and Jaclyn Fisher, on property located at 24537 Road N, 

Cortez.  Second by Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried.  Commissioner Candelaria closed 

the hearing at this time.  (See attached) 

 



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 10, 2022     Page 2 
 

  

LETTER OF SUPPORT: Administrator Shak Powers, presented a letter of support addressed 

to Holly Conn regarding the Mountain Roots 2022 LFPP application for the Southwest 

Colorado Hub-and-Node Connectivity Project.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the 

letter of support for the Mountain Roots 2022 LFPP application for the Southwest Colorado 

Hub-and-Node Connectivity Project.  Second by Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried.  (See 

attached) 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: It being the time set aside a public hearing is held for review and 

determination of a proposed High Impact Permit Application, submitted by Snyder Mama 

Holdings, LLC; agent: Christopher Snyder, on property located at 1521 N. Mildred Road, 

Cortez, CO, consisting of 3.48 acres, more or less, located north of Road N, west of Road 25, 

situated in Section 23, T.36N, R.16W, N.M.P.  The roll was called, the public notice read, and 

the proceedings were recorded for the record.  Mona Snyder and Brooke Snyder were present.  

Chris Snyder joined the meeting virtually.  Planning Director, Don Haley with Assistant, S. 

Jane Duncan presented the details of the application and the findings of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission.  Commissioner Candelaria opened the hearing to public comment.  Public 

comment was made by Allen Maez.  Hearing no further public comment that portion of the 

hearing was closed.  After hearing all the evidence presented Commissioner Koppenhafer moved 

to approve the proposed high impact permit application, submitted by Snyder Mama Holdings, 

LLC; agent: Christopher Snyder, on property located at 1521 N. Mildred Road, Cortez, CO.  

Second by Commissioner Lindsay and carried.  Commissioner Candelaria closed the hearing at 

this time.  (See attached) 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: It being the time set aside a public hearing is held for review and 

determination of a proposed High Impact Permit Application and Rezoning Application, 

submitted by CBERT Cortez, LLC; agent: Kasey Bell, on property located at 26757 Road M, 

Cortez, CO, consisting of 1.50 acres, more or less, located north of Road M, west of Hwy 145, 

situated in Section 12, T.36N, R.16W, N.M.P.M.  The roll was called, the public notice read, and 

the proceedings were recorded for the record.  Kasey and Taryn Bell were present.  Planning 

Director, Don Haley with Assistant, S. Jane Duncan presented the details of the application 

and the findings of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Commissioner Candelaria opened the 

hearing to public comment.  Public comment was made by Melanie McDonald, Rich 

McDonald and Tim Lanier.  Hearing no further public comment that portion of the hearing was 

closed.  After hearing the evidence presented Commissioner Lindsay moved to continue this 

public hearing until 9:10 a.m., Tuesday, May 17, 2022.  Second by Commissioner Koppenhafer 

and carried.  Commissioner Candelaria closed the hearing at this time.  (See attached) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Melanie McDonald discussed the proposed CBERT, LLC/ Kasey Bell 

application.  Tim Lanier discussed the month of May as Foster Care Month.  

 

SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR LICENSE: Deputy Clerk, Jerri Frizzell along with County 

Fair Board Member, Mary Bramwell, presented a special event liquor license application from 

the Montezuma County Fair Board, for events to be held from July 28th through August 6, 

2022, at the Montezuma County Fairgrounds.  Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the 

special events liquor license for the County Fair, for dates July 28th, through August 6, 2022.  

Second by Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried.  (See attached) 



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 10, 2022     Page 3 
 

  

 

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: Road & Bridge Equipment Manager, Shane Higman met 

with the Commissioners to give a monthly report.  Topics discussed included; the delivery and 

set up for the detective vehicles, yearly departmental mileage reports,  current market issues with 

vehicle replacements, a proposed Landfill / Maintenance vehicle swap, the 2023 vehicle 

purchase plan and the development of a Department vehicle share program.   

 

GROUNDS AND BUILDINGS: Maintenance Supervisor, Dustin Sattler met with the 

Commissioners to report on the grounds and buildings.  Topics discussed included; the semi-

annual filter change at the Combined Courts Building,  mowing operations, summer set up for 

irrigation, a fence for the new generator, the generator meter installation, the Social Services 

interview room door project and a scheduled walk through at the Fairgrounds to review the 

proposed steer washer project.   

 

IT: IT Director, Jim McClain met with the Commissioners to present his monthly report.  

Director McClain discussed; the new generator start up, a major power outage event and the 

backup plan, the attended Broadband Summit, a visit from the State Broadband Liaison, a 

June 2nd Regional Broadband meeting, the development of mock emergency internet outage 

event, coordination with regional County GIS departments for accurate mapping and 

collaboration with the State Broadband Office for the development of a grant process.      

 

GIS MAPPING: GIS Manager, Doug Roth and Mapping Specialist, Rachel Medina met 

with the Commissioners to give a monthly report.  Topics discussed included; the development 

of an Interactive Wildfire Mitigation Map, scheduling the public hearing to adopt the 2022 

Official Road Map, a budgeted invoice in the amount of $14,736.27 for the Apollo Mapping 

LLC., imagery project and the resignation of Mapping Specialist Rachel Medina.  (See attached)  

 

UNFINSHED BUSINESS: Administrator Powers discussed a County Annex, fee waiver 

request, from Lynn Soukup, for the Spark the Change Colorado, Harvest Pack Project.  

Commissioner Lindsay moved to waive the fees for the pre-packaged food, Spark Colorado.  

Second by Commissioner Koppenhafer and carried.    

 

COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORT: County Attorney, Ian MacLaren discussed the Weber 

Canyon / Road 41 lawsuit, the Road Y case, an attended tour of a property south of town 

regarding a Land Use Code violation, a recent law change pertaining to Land Use Code 

violations and the closure of a child protection case.   

  

NATURAL RESOURCES, PLANNING & PUBLIC LANDS: Resource Director, James 

Dietrich, presented for approval a letter of support, addressed to the Colorado Department of 

Natural Resources. CO Strategic Wildfire Action Program, Landscape Resilience 

Investment selection committee.  Commissioner Koppenhafer moved to sign the letter of 

support for the Mancos Conservation District’s submission, for the Colorado Strategic Wildfire 

Action Program, Landscape Resilience Investment grant.  Second by Commissioner Lindsay and 

carried.  Other topics discussed included; an invite to participate in the Section 106 process for 

the Yellow Jacket / Flowdine park grazing reissuance and the submitted grant applications for 

the Path of Mesa Verde.  (See attached)  



 

Montezuma County Commissioner Minutes May 10, 2022     Page 4 
 

  

 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT:  Administrator Shak Powers discussed an 

$8,000.00 quote for a Load Study on the proposed Fairground Solar Field Project, the submittal 

of the 2 year plan for the Community Intervention Program, the attended Recovery and 

Resiliency Group meeting, an attended joint Economic Development / Region 9 meeting and 

the attended Young People in Recovery meeting.   

 

COUNTY COMMISSIONER REPORT: Topics discussed within the Commissioners reports 

included: Commissioner Koppenhafer reported on discussions held regarding the Zwicker / 

(NRCS) Natural Resources Conservation Service request.  Commissioner Lindsay discussed 

the scheduled Cortez City Council meeting and the Motocross National Championship 

winner Eli Tomac.  Commissioner Candelaria gave a legislative update, reported on a 

discussion with Representative, Barbara McLachlan, a discussion with Road Superintendent 

Englehart regarding constituent road issues, a phone call discussion with Senator 

Hickenlooper regarding housing issues, participation in the 12 Hours of Mesa Verde event, the 

funds returned to the community youth programs by the 12 Hours of Mesa Verde event, an 

overview of the Monday workshop and the attended Dolores Town Board meeting.  

 

CORRESPONDENCE: The following correspondence was read and noted:    

 

MOTION TO ADJOURN: was made by Commissioner Lindsay, seconded by Commissioner 

Koppenhafer and carried. 

 

MEETING ADJOURNED: 11:20 a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________        ____________________________ 

Clerk                               May 10, 2022                        Chairman 

 


	Agenda
	1.B.245
	       ATT_Food Truck_Mobile Vendor Review
	1.C. Council Discussion Regarding Possible Adoption of City Council Protocols
	       ATT_DRAFT City Council Protocols
	1.D. Council Discussion Regarding Council Workshop Venue and Set Up Options
	1.E. Marijuana times of opening
	       ATT_Ord 1215
	1.G.a.226
	       ATT_BOCC 05032022
	1.G.b. BOCC Minutes 05102022
	       ATT_BOCC Minutes 05102022

